CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
REGULAR SCHEDULED PUBLIC MEETING

ORANGE PARK. FLORIDA
Oetober 18, 2017

AGENDA

CHAIR
VICE-CHAIR
TREASURER
SECRETARY

1} Welecome/Call to Order 4:00 pm

<) Rell Call

3 Invocation

4) Imstallation of New Officers

5) Comments from the Public

6) Economic Development Report

T) Small Business Development Report

#) Secretary’s Report
Approval of September 20, 20017 Minutes

9} Treasurer's Report
September 2017 Financials

10} Committee Reports

11) Chair's Report

11) Executive Director's Report
Report on Grants
Building Updates

13) Attorney’s Report

REUSSELL BUCK
MARGE HUTTON
MIKE DAVIDSON
GREG CLARY
Russell Buck
Josh Coclrell

Greg Clary

Russell Buck
Laura Pavias
Annie Grogan

Grep Clary

Mike Davidson

Russell Buck
Fussell Buck

Josh Cockrell

April Scott



14) Old Business/New Business/Board Comments
Penney Retirement Community [RB Application & Presentation
Penney Retirement Community TEFRA Hearing
Penney Retirement Community Authority Inducement Resolution
Formal Adoption of FY 2017/18 Budget & Resolution
Formal Adoption of FY 2016/17 Amended Budget & Resolution
Community Auto Finance Parmership Program

15) Adjournment
Dates of Upcoming CCDA Meetings:

Wednesday, November 15, 2017
Wednesday, January 17, 2018
Wednesday, February 21, 2018
Wednesday, March 21, 2018
Wednesday, April 18, 2018
Wednesday, May 16, 2018
Wednesday, June 20, 2018
Wednesday, July 18, 2018
Wednesday, August 15, 2018
Wednesday, September 19, 2018

TIME: 4:00 PM

LOCATION: Haven Hospice
Board Hoom
745 Blanding Boulevard
Orange Park, FL 32065

Russell Buck

Russell Buck

NOTE: Items 6 through 14, above, are subject to discussion, consideration, and action by

the Board of the Clay County Development Authority.

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Pursuant to F.S. s. 286.0014 (2013) /, and Clay County
Development Authority policy], speakers intending to offer public comment must complete a
provided speaker’s card, turn in the same fo the recording secretary for the public meeting,
and may address the Board when recognized by the Chair of the meeting with their public
comments for a period of not more than three (3) minutes, The Chair of the meeting has

the authority and discretion to make special provisions for a group or faction

spokesperson. The Chair of the meeting has all requisite autherity and discretion to

maintain orderly conduct or proper decorum of the public meeting.

Fa



CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
REGULAR SCHEDULED PUBLIC MEETING
MINUTES

September 20, 2017

Present: Marge Hutton, Cathy Chambers, Chereese Stewart, Greg Clary, Bruce Butler, Tom
Morris, Amy Pope Wells

Excused: Russell Buck, Mike Davidson, Keith Ward
Staff: Josh Cockrell, Taylor Mejia, April Scott; Counsel
Guests: Matt Carlton, Paz Patel, Chip Dobson, Laura Pavius, Annie Grogan

Call to Order: Marge Hutton called the Clay County Development Authority ("CCDA")
Public Meeting to order at 4:00 PM,

Invocation: Greg Clary provided the invocation.

Comments from the Public: None.

Recognitions
Marge Hutton recognized past Board Members Chip Dobson, Matt Carlton, and Paz Patel

for their service on the CCDA Board.

Economic Development Report

Laura Pavlus informed the Board of the status of EDC projects.

Small Business Development Report

Annie Grogan passed out the SBDC report and informed the Board of the programs
available to small businesses for hurricane relief,

Secretary's Report

Approval of August 9, 2017 Minutes - Chereese Stewart made a motion to approve the
minutes as presented. Motion was seconded and passed unanimously.

Treasurer's Report
Josh Cockrell presented the August 2017 financials to the Board. Bruce Butler made a
motion to accept the Treasurer’s Report. The motion was seconded and passed

unanimously.

Adoption of FY 2017-18 Budget
Jash Cockrell presented the FY 2017-18 Budget to the Board. The Board continued
discussion regarding projected revenues from sources like rental and grants as well as



expenses like sponsorships and professional fees. Greg Clary made a motion to accept the
FY 2017-18 proposed budget. Motion seconded and passed unanimously.

Committee Reports

None.

Chair's Report

None.

Executive Director’s Report

Auditor Negotiations and Contract - Josh Cockrell informed the Board of the progress
that was made in negotiations with jJames Moore & Associates. Tom Morris made a motion

to accept the contract with fames Moore & Associates. Motion seconded and passed
unanimously,

Building Update and Next Steps - Josh Cockrell stated that the new building tenant will
be moving in on November 1. He informed the Board that he is in the process of finding a
new location for the phone line and that the new meeting space will be at Haven Hospice.
The Board briefly discussed the agreement executed with the tenant to possibly purchase
the building. Josh Cockrell also explained that the CCDA is not exempt from paying
property taxes on the building for the square footage not used by the CCDA or used by non-
exempt organizations/businesses.

Report on Grants - Josh Cockrell gave a brief update on the status of grants including the
buffer grants and DIG grant.

Industrial Revenue Bonds - Josh Cockrell informed the Board that there should be an
IRB application to present at the next meeting. He also informed the Board that he and
April Scott worked with Peter Dame begin the review and update of the guidelines for
IRB's. The Board discussed potential outreach efforts for members to inform the
community of IRB opportunities.

April Scott stated that she is still in the process of working with Peter Dame to determine
which entity can grant the CCDA approval for IRE applications.

Old Bus; New Busi / Board ¢ I

Community Auto Finance Partnership Program - Tabled until next meeting.

Election of New Officers - Cathy Chambers nominated Russell Buck for Board Chairman.
Motion seconded and passed unanimously. Chereese Stewart nominated Marge Hutton for
Board Vice Chairman. Motion seconded and passed unanimously, Marge Hutton
nominated Mike Davidson for Treasurer, Motion seconded and passed unanimously. Marge
Hutton made a motion to nominate Greg Clary for Secretary. Motion seconded and passed
unanimously.

Adjourned: 5:15 PM



A

COLEMAN & ASSOCIATES

Certifend Pk Agoimtng Fim

ACCOUNTANTS' COMPILATION REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Clay County Developmeant Authority
Orange Park, FL

Management Is responsible for the accompanying government-wide balance sheets of Clay
County Development Authority (a governmental organization) as of September 30, 2017 and
2016, and the related statements of revenues and expenses for the one month and fiscal year
then ended which collectively comprise the Authority’s financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, We have performed a
compilation engagement in accordamce with Statements on Standards for Accounting and
Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Servicas Committee of the AICPA.
We did not audit or review the financal statements nor were we required to perform any
procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the Information provided by management.
Acrordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on
these financial statements.

Management has elected to omit the management discussion and analysis, the governmental
fund financial statements and substantially all the disclosures required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. If the management discussion and analysis
and governmental fund financal statements and omitted disclocures were Included in the
financial statements, they might Influence the user's conclusions about the Authority’s financial
position, results of operations, and cash flows. Accordingly, the financial statements are not
designed for those who are not informed about such matters,

Acoounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that budget to
actual statements for the one month and fiscal year ending September 30, 2017 be presented
to supplement the finandal statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Gowvernmental Accounting Standards Board who

considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic finandal
statements In an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. This information |s

the representation of management. This information was subject to our compilation
engagement, however, we have not audited or reviewed the required supplementary
information and, accordingly, do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of
assurance on such information.

We are not independent with respect to the Clay County Development Authority.
(- olaman 1 frsocietes ":-Pﬂ B
October 9, 2017

FLC), B B2 79 - Flernang sland, Floricla 320048 & (F) S04 284-0881 = (] - 208140

s Ciskemanandassm I.I1|'¢l"l!|.1 et



Clay County Development Authority
GOVERNMENTWIDE BALANCE SHEET

Ag of September 30, 2017

TOTAL

AREETS
Currant Assels
Bank Accounts

&5 OF SEF 30, 207

AS OF SEF 30, 2016 (PY)

100002 First Abantc Checking - 1484 GE, 265 58,244
100007 investment - Flodda Prime - A 153,848 1623688
100016 Compass Bank Money Market - Pub 177.612 176451
100318 First Atfantic Bank MMET -1453 1,275,207 734,21
100220 Reglons - Deveom Funds L+ 60,749
100025 Filth-Third CD ] Ti428
100026 Fitth-Third 2 (GO a TEAZE
Tatal Bank Accounts §1.674,962 81,024,897
Accounts Recaivable
115002 Hevenue Recelatle 48 363 4B5.782
Tatal Acocounts Fecahabla $46.363 Ga4BE Th2
Total Cumant Assats §1.721.315 §1.610,658
Flugd Asgels
162807 Buidings and real estate d442 328 442 328
162950 Lessshold improvemants - Daveom 28, 842 28842
1E6900 Orifice Bgquipment 58248 58,348
167900 Accum Depreciation [87,180) (87,180}
Total Fixed Assats 42 378 $442.328
Crher Assets
178000 Escrow deposit with Tolson 8,000
Tolal Other Assats §6,000 ¥
TOTAL ASSETS $2.169,542 $2.262,988
LIABILITIES AND EQLHTY
Liabilities
Currant Liahilkies
Accounts Feyable
200000 Accounts Payable 325 2,600
Total Accounts Payable $325 52,500
Chivar Currand Liabiifies
220000 Security Deposits 7473 1,788
Dept of Havenua Payable 348 94
Total Ofhas Curreni Liabililies £r.a2 iz
Totad Current Liabillties $8,145 84,002
Taotad Liabilitias BB,145 §4.382
Equity
272000 MNet Assel Balanos 1,807,068 1,850,065
280000 Invest in Fiwad Assats 441,535 441,536
320000 Retained Earnings o 0

Read Accouniants Compialion fRepon

W2



TOTAL

AS OF SEP 30, 2017 AS OF SEP 30, 2016 [FY)

Nel Income |87,108) T (42088
Total Equity §2,161,488 2,248,604
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQLETY 22 165,642 £2.252 986

RAead Accourdants Compiakon Rapon



Clay County Development Authority
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Seplamber 2017
TOTAL
= SEF 2017 DGCT 2016 - SEP 2017 (YTD)
INCOME
331000 Grant Revenwas 444 GE3 11
Fentz & Royalties 4,970.00 44 SRR G2
IEH000 Miscallaneous Revenues B804 13,01 5.47
Totsl Income £5.608.04 $502,238. 50
GROSS PROFIT §5,808.04 $502,238.50
EXPEMSES
512200 Sponsorships 22,000.00
513300 Professional Fess 10,082.50 91,375.00
513440 Insurancs 2.861.04
513468 Building Expenses - 1734 Kingsiey Ave 241081 az.225.33
513510 Office and Cperating Expensas 162490 5,257,866
SEA000 Gran Expenss 435 487 .36
Total Expenses $12,856.01 $585,346.38
MET OPERATING INCOME 5 -6.847 57 §-B7.107.BE
MNET INCOME 5 -6.847.97 & -B7.107.88
e == 0 =

Fead Accountanss Comrpalafion Regor
Acorual Basts Monday, Octohar 8, 2017 1112 AW GMT-F 1L



Clay County Development Authority
STATEMENT OF REVENUES aMD EXPENSES

October 2016 - Seplamber 2017

TOTAL
QiCT 2016 - SEP 27 OCT 2015 - 5EP 2018 CHAMNGE
(Y}
INCOME
331000 Gram Pevenues
330100 MG 16-01 Lility Infrastruciune Uipgrade 81,052 (81,052
B30107 NG 1809 Litllity bndressiruciune Uipgrade Admin 8.550 {8,550)
Fags
330102 OTF 15401 Butler Land Purchase 80,000 {380,000
330103 DTF 15-01 Biter Land Purchasa Admin Faas 14726 {14,726)
30705 DTF 16401 Buffer Land Purchase Admin Fees 10,200 {10,200}
330108 OTF 16-144 Butfer Land Purchase 200,000 2a0.000
330107 DTF 16-144 Buller Land Purchase - Admin Fees 8176 #1176
30108 DIGE 50055 Roadway Resuracing A48 487 a5 487
Total 331000 Grant Reveres 444 563 404 528 (43 8E5)
352000 Aems & Aoyalties
362003 Tocol Enginaering lic 8,040 8,035 4]
JER005 Flanda Fea Pratection &40 {5,444
AEN0T Rent - TomEnson & Ca 3.2 8,040 {4,749)
2608 Rent-Laland Managament 10,800 10,800
362008 Rent-Clay County Chamber 18,800 16,800
32010 Aent- GoTobrazis Waring 2,625 2625
Total 362000 Rants & Royalfes 44 558 22 518 22037
SEI000 Miscelfanoous Revenues
361000 Investmant Eamings 4,680 10,087 [a7)
3808001 Industrial Development Bond lasus Fees ag,400 (3B 400)
360002 |nterest Inceme fram COC ira a7z (RO}
368003 Colledlions allowance TE i 1] i 71
2658004 Revenus from IRB 1,000 1,000
60005 Mizcsllaneous Revenue 1,788 1 1,785
AEH008 IMerest incoma - 5500 e [7E5]
Todal 2ES000 Miscallanaous Fevenues 13,018 50,269 {a7,248)
Total Incoms $502,238 8567316 % (B5.077)
GROSS PROFIT $502,239 $567.316 § (85,077)
EXFENSES
STH200 Sponsorships
512250 Funding to 5800 10,000 10,000 o
512500 Funding o CEDC 10,000 10,000 o
512600 Clay Day Event Sponsor 2,000 2,000
5135325 Econgmic Developrment Study 10,000 (10,000}
Total 512200 Sponsorships 22,000 20,000 {8,000)
§13300 Professional Fess
513305 Administration Comtract 135 8 00 i, 000 1]
513310 Anormey 8,000 £.000 i

Fead Account=nls Compaation Beport



TOTAL

e ]

OCT 2016 - SEP 27T QCT 2015 - SEP 2018 CHANGE
P
513320 Awcitor 4. Te5 7,023 (2,258)
513321 Accounting 305 2,700 35
E13322 Aeal estale commission 4. 583 4,583
B13338 Accounting Ancillary Charges 2240 2,15 147E)
513340 Attomey Ancliary Gharges 1813 1.813
513400 Consulting Fess - Public Records Complisnce 5,094 [5.094)
Total 513300 Professional Fees 81,375 82,532 (1,157
513440 Insurance
513443 Gengral Llabity Coverage B22 441 1
513444 Public Cificials Lishility 2138 2,140 12
Total 513440 Insuranos 2,861 2,581 380
613460 Dewcom LLP Expanse 18,160 (18,150)
513460 Buiding Expanses - 1734 Kingslay Ava 32 225 32 295
513510 Office and Operaling Expénses
513480 Bpecial Promobions/Events Sponsorship 200 (200)
513280 Businsss Mesting 13 1 &8
513484 Dues & Subscriplions 525 1,875 (750)
513511 Cifice Expense to Clay County Charmbar ara 375)
513512 Cifice Supplies CAE] 320 198
513574 Misg Office Expense 424 {424)
513576 Talaphong 675 ea =]
513517 Licanses & Faas 200 175 25
513518 Wabsits expenses 1284 1,273 11
E13618 Trawval 50 452 294
B13620 Conlarengas AES 326
513521 Advertising & Markeling 1] 10 178
513522 Benk Service Chargas 10 10
Total 513810 Offics and Oparating Expanses 5,208 5087 (gag)
ERI000 Grant Expensa
553000 DNG 1&-01 LHilty Infrastruciure Upgrads 81,052 (B1,052)
555006 DTF 15-01 Butfar Land Purchase 380,000 (380,000)
BES00E OTF 16-144 Bufter Land Purchass 30,000 F00,000
EES00D DIGE 20050 Roadway Resurfacing 45 487 45 487
Total S58000 Grant Expansa 435 487 451,052 [25.965)
Total Expenses 5509.345 $810,302 § (20,956)
MET OFERATING INCOME % (B7,108) % (42 986) § (44,727
NET INCOME $ (B7,108) ¥ (42.986) § (44.127)
e —

Fasd Accouniantes Compiation Report



Clay County Development Authority

BUDGET VS. ACTUALS: CCDA - FY18/1T - LAST MONTH

Faad Accoundania Compilabicn Repoan

Saplembar 2017
o TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET  OVERBUDGET % OF BUDGET
INCOME
242000 Fund Balance - FY Camyoryand (B, 155) 8,155
331000 Granl Revanises
30108 DIG# 50059 Roadway Resuracing 285,000 {285,000
330109 DIGH 50059 Roadway Resuracing Admin 15,000 {15,000
Fegs
Tatal 331000 Grant Revenues 300,000 {300,000}
362000 Rents & Royaities
32003 Toosl Engineering lic &70 750 f=1e 8500 %
282007 Aant - Tomlingan & Co 700 {700}
382008 Aent-Laland Managememnt 200 g00 0 100.00 %
362008 Aent-Clay County Chamibar 1,650 o 1,650
SA2010 Aent- BoTobranls Waxing 1.750 1,200 B850 146.00 %
Total 362000 Rents & Aoyalties 4470 3,550 1,420 180,00 &
69000 Miscellaneous Revenues
361000 Investment Eamings 795 1,000 1205] BO.0D %%
358003 Coliections allowance F) 7
35005 Misoalanpous Ravenue 36 35
Total 366000 Miscallaneous Revenues a38 1,000 1162) B4, b 9%
Total Income §5.808 $296,395 £ (200,587) 2.00%
GROSS PROFIT §5,808 §206,296 § (290,587) 2,00 %
EXPEMSES
513300 Professional Fess
513305 Adminigtration Condrect 135 5,500 5500 ] 10000 %
513310 AHormey 750 (75d)
513322 Real sstate commission 4 5E3 4,583
513340 Atiorney Ancillary Chargas 300 (200}
Total 513300 Professonal Feas 10,083 6,550 3,533 154,00 %
513440 Insurance
513443 General Liabily Coverage 830 (850}
Total 513440 Insurance 850 {850}
513468 Building Expanses - 1734 Kingslay Ava 241 2,700 {1,288} 65.00 %
513510 Office and Operating Expanses
5134B0 Speclal Promolicns/Events. Sponsarship 100 1100}
513400 Business Meesding 25 (25}
513514 Misc OHice Experse &0 150)
513576 Talaphong 55 &0 (5] 91.00 %%
513519 Trawel 108 o 108
513521 Advertising & Marketing ] (60)
Total 513510 Offica and Oparafing Expanzas 183 205 {133 55,00 %
559000 Grani Expansa
559005 DIG# S005% Aoadway Resuriacing 285,000 {285,000]



ACTLIAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

Total 559000 Grant Expense 285,000 {285,000
Total Expansas §12,858 §296,395 § (283,739) 400 %
NET OPERATING INCOME $ (€,848) 0 § (6,848) 0%
NET INCOME $ (6,848) 50 $ (6,848) 0%

Read Accountants Compihan Repart



Clay County Development Authority

BUDGET V8. ACTUALS: CCDA - FY18/17T - LAST MONTH
Dctober 2016 - Seplembar 2017

513440 Ingwranca

FRead Accountants Compdabon Repon

TOTAL
ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET
MCOME ' =
242000 Fund Balance - PY Carrytonsand B4,425 {84 428)
31000 Girant Févanies
330106 OTF 16144 Bufter Land Purchasa 350,000 390,000 o 100000 9%
J30v07 OTF 16144 Buffer Land Purchase - Admin 3178 10,000 (824 F2 00 %
Feas
330108 DIGEF 500559 Roadway Feswfacing 45,487 2E5,000 238,513 16.00 %
330109 DIGE S0058 Roadway Aesutacing Admin 15,000 {15,000)
Faag
Total 331000 Grant Revenues 444 BE3 F00, 000 (256,337 B4, 00
AGH000 Rents & Rovalies
362003 Tocoi Enginesring o B.040 8,70 {2 52,00 %
SE2007F FHant - Tomlinzon & Co 429 4310 6.0 By 40,00 5
362008 Aent-Letand Manageman 10,800 10,800 ] 10:0.00 %
382009 Aent-Clay County Chambar 19.800 8,900 8,900 200.00 %
362010 Rent- GoTobrazils Waxing 2535 10,800 {8,175} 2400 %
Total 362000 Rents 3 Royalties 44 556 48,570 [4,014) 82.00 %
3858000 Miscellaneous Revenues
361000 Imeastment Earmings 5,980 12,000 2,010 B83.00 %
J62002 Imerest Income from CCC 172 172
368003 Colections sliowance T2 T2
365004 Revenue from [RB 1,000 1000
363005 Miscellnaous Revanue 1,766 1,786
Total 369000 Miscellanecus Revenuses 13.018 12,000 1,018 108.00 %
Toia! Incoma §502,239 $844 005 § (342, 757) E5.00 %
GROSS PROFIT £502,239 $844,995 & (242,757 58.00 %
EXPEMSES
512200 Sponsonships
512250 Funoéng to SEDC 10,000 10,000 L1 100.00 %
512500 Funding to CEDN 10,000 10,000 a 100.00 %
512600 Clay Day Evanl Sponsor 2000 2,000
Totad 512200 Sponeonships 22,000 20,000 2,000 110.00 %
51330 Proftessional Feas
513305 Administrabon Contract 1GS &E,000 BE,00D 0 100,00 %
513310 Alomay 8,000 9,000 o 100.005%
513320 Audior 4,725 225 (.50} B5.00 %
513327 Acoounting 3ms 2820 195 10700 %
513322 Aeal estate comimession 4 GET 4 BE3
513335 Accounting Ancillary Charges 2,240 2,750 (510} 81.00%
513340 Athormay Ancllary Chargas 1.813 3,800 {1,7EB} 50.00 %%
Total 513300 Professional Fees 51,375 81,395 120 100,00 %



TOTAL

ACTLIAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % QF BUDGET
513443 Genaral Ligbility Coverage B&Z as0 {23 97.00 9%
513444 Public Officals Liability 2,139 2,200 {61} 87.00 %
Total 513440 Ingurance 2,081 3,050 (a5 87.00 %
513488 Buliding Expenses - 1734 Kingsley Ave ] i D (12,175 TAN0 %
513510 Office and Operating Expanses
513480 Special PromationsEvants Sponsarship 400 (400
513400 Business Meafing 123 300 (177 41,00 %
513404 Dues & Subscrigtions 5en 1,275 (750} 41,00 %
£13512 Office Supplies 518 518
513514 Misc Dffice Expense GOD ({0l
513516 Talephone &75 720 (45 84,00 %
513517 Licenses & Feas 200 175 25 14.00 %
513518 Webelie expenses 1,284 8,380 {5,076 2000 %
513519 Travel 750 400 as0 18800 %
513520 Conferences 328 200 125 16200 5
5135821 Advertising & Markating BEE 720 168 125.00 %
£13522 Bank Servica Charges 10 i
Tetal 513510 Office and Operating Expenses 5208 11,150 {5,862) 48,00 %
550000 Oranl Expinse
EE0008 DTF 18144 Buffer Land Purchase 330,000 A50,000 i 100,00 %
559008 DIGE 50050 Roadway Resurfacing 45 457 285000 (238 513) 16.00 %
Total 553000 Grant Expenss 435 467 875,000 230.513) B5.00 %
Total Expenses $5B0. 346 §044 995 % (255,640) T0.00 %
MET OFERATING INCOME § (B7.108) §0 § (87.108) i3
MET INGOME §(87,108) $0 § (a7.108) (i3
—_—— —

Faad Accouianis Compiation Repor



RESOLUTION NO. 2017/2018-01

RESOLUTION OF CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY (THE "AUTHORITY") FORMALLY ADOPTING
BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018; AUTHORIZING
THE AUTHORITY'S CONTRACTED ADMINISTRATIVE
STAFF TO TAKE OTHER AND FURTHER ACTIONS
REASONABLY  NECESSARY OR  HELPFUL  IN
FURTHERANCE OF THIS RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE FORMAL ACTION OF THE AUTHORITY, THAT THE FOLLOWING ACTION IS
HEREBY ADOPTED AS THE LEGAL AND BINDING ACTION AND RESOLUTION OF THE AUTHORITY,
PERTAINING TO THE ABOVE SUBJECT MATTER SPECIFIED.

BACKGROUND RECITALS

WHEREAS, it is necessary and appropriate for the Authority to formally adopt and publish its
budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018;

WHEREAS, the contracted administrative staff, accountant, and Treasurer for the Authaority have
prepared and provided such budget for formal adoption and approval;

WHEREAS, the Authority previoushy adopted such budget for the current fiscal year by its Informal
action at its regular scheduled meeting on September 20, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to fully comply with the provisions of all applicable laws and
auditor recommendations o implement and cbserve best practices in the adoption and amendment of
its budgets.

FORMAL ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2017/2018-01

MNOW, THEREFORE, THE FOLLOWING ACTION IS HEREBY FORMALLY ADOPTED BY THIS RESOLUTION NO.
2017/2018-01, DATED EFFECTIVE THIS 18™ DAY OF OCTOBER, 2017, AS FOLLOWS:

Sectlon 1, The authority's official Budget for Fiscal Year 20172018, representing the budget for
the current fiscal year of the Authority as currently projected, is hereby accepted, approved and adopted
in the form attached hereto and hereln incorporated by reference,

Section 2. The contracted administrative staff of the Autharity shall take such other and further
actions as may be reasonably necessany or helpful to the formal action authorized, approved, and adopted
by this Resolution Mo, 2017/2018-01, and as may include, for purposes of ilustration and not limitation,
(a) informing the auditor of the Autharity of the formal approval of the budget for Fiscal Year 2017/2018,
(b)) publishing the formally adopted budget for Fiscal Year 201772018 on the Authority's website, and (¢)
filing the same with the Clerk for the Board of County Commissioners for Clay County, Florida,

CCDA Resolution Mo, 20017 /2018-01 Page 1



Section 3, This Resolution 2017/2018-01 and the formal action as set forth herein shall be
effective immediately upon adoption.

DULY ADOPTED THIS 18" DAY OF OCTOBER, 2017, BY THE CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY.

CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

BY:
NAME:
TITLE: RUSSELL BUCK, CHAIR

ATTEST:

SECRETARY
CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(SEAL)

—_— —_—
CCDA Resolution Mo, 2017 /2018-01 Page 2




E | wileg

[eile (o Lei]e = [Lele ) E 8] o B [~ =4 T IE HT ZAVRE B BT e BORE AL e d gy By iR
O i e O Dty o E B (-5 T [ B~ B [T BT RO DT WO i o ) s Ry (Y
R RNy DROCRY
ool i D T [ T WO I R, e
e —— ———— ———
[T FET Y A R AR D DL
ol E g B el L [Eepe hopl S o Py R R
o g Lk T [LTE- - [ L] S o ey - CREEIN
ey . ETLE
LR LEd L] Ay Tl ‘e L LT AT TP Bl TR mamwsa | LLiET - LSRR P g BT MEneE s )
=
HIREE 0 e b a B T eI B 0 oy 0 81 TS g AL - B Pirg
L R ol L e R (R (S Y i onmi it FLEEISY R
Ll AL ] L I Lk L (L] ol e L L L] o0 2 L o i | ersaLay e SR T
— —_ — —
e L] (=R a0k B (o] ol [T L] 3T [T blila oy Smmay e R
[ S 0 o e, S Ly - OO
Ll L2 =rw I me (e ] -] o3 10 {2 b ] [ ] - T TR T T T
LRl o LI T T T R B T
e LELE L R T LR A e e B
——— Pt
b ey B B T SRR R R e DD B
Ll eyl LrLe e S LR ] ey em 06D D) bOnd
o o (L R ] Ridmla gy g R | o MDA AT LI
e R [ E-F 4 E e T g T PR T e T
Lt L] G iy BRSSP A RO el T B
[ e e Eomrermgy darpmey pOICHE (BT BFIL
EareiRady R - BOOLED
IR L MR skl Ll ol il by Ll Ll DR [T o i i L] ey W TR R EAUEDMTY
— —_— Y — ———— —————  iamama—— =
CAHL iE BEaa BT L o [CeEe e E TR [ZF ] [CEE T [FE Tl [ET [ETH e 8 LiBEW
AT [ = T BT
LRrRCL ] e P A DA ST P
s R oy Bl wwa |  CHER
RS FUE (0T
L]
L] -diPa L L] aamr JL wry n_.ﬂl -_.H LI 0L 4 Pl oer Ll Mg L1 s LD s L e e Quaaa L) Aaeuipal
————

0P s easde] i (af et
wdidng 1ipng BT B0
R iny g sssn e e A deg

g oy
imrkrc
MY el



LU

-n%t.;!._ oy rror aemnyag
ML BN R g
R T Tl s N Sy AR Py e

T — [T i s [T T T Ha H = =] wiE T3 Eaiiniaf piny
_ﬂﬂrﬂﬂﬂli.il I L L T I e I [T e e Rl
o5 T B0 L] el ] il e Eey
oo = T T — ey A s Dl 00 - T
Bl T Lttt RS L FEIRTR =T 1
e R BT iy ey GO N AR
BRI - O
I 'l EATRE R o o Dk - o g s D 8 B saimr ) Moy e - B IR E R L
— _—
i Lt g mang) P EEWE LN
i EICRE s GEAE R
] (i y Tl mzy e o B i Nl (£ 3] LA i e L1 AR b
e - ] BT Lo Bk T Y
[T o § 1T iy i JLRER
RO | of I i e TS SRR BRI
Lol LR B = L2 1] it =ik L] il T i o= Lol FHER O ey L0
L1 T (o] 1 1] S i [ 41 [0 ] o &8 [+ a0 i o3 mga mEgimE] gI4T.E
saTa LF apon g - RESs B
B Ba= L) = L4 1 amE L AL =g i L O L] mLET Ty WS e
Hlms B £ i ] -5 [N ] {0 =g o e o e (-2 iy frrey Ul rugrs C1ETRE
e g Boypsein pew sG - AL IS
[-L9E T Ly P EEEL [ECE T i il [ i 1M EIILE L e [ B BT doaw e il v g vy Bapilbg FLIL - BERDES FEOQ
CT B e
B -3 R
L o G ey WA
L ey T OE RS PN
B ] o gal Ry Lo EiCE e (10 3£ R [T [T foy -t o i R
T [l O e B i I CaY BT LR [ et e ol W o E O [E s e
R o SEWT PO L a T T Ll 4 L =] LLE [ e ] Bammrypory - eHIg
o X (L] Lo B PR T
ol ol L1 Ea o | W [ 4 L o LE- B me L Ry EEVEIN
Bt nl iy Capefun EEL - BEREER
LR B ] Lt g mEmET) EROLE AL
— s — e——
Wl AT AR P P ) S - LN
s TR Eadif] P v e DROTIE
BT - el bF
B (efoan B ) BRI iy Wi BUCLEN i T BTAF | WA o IS LI e LT P
- — ——— e e — — T e el e ——
Eoicw Bl R R [T 5O E i o ek (=13 Y o il [ o Sy D ) Dy ey DIDLIR
Lie e o e Lol g e iy By BRI
Ly sToaE LI o8 K B oo [ E- aied Py 34 i 0 G T @iy e | R0 B T
Ll i) Eele oY e i BT P R L b Bl B ] e EIRRE T R E B8 ) il gy EITLD
L= Th | Lo ol

gl s vy meT o AR LT
drirg EruT

LLITTG
Y 0L



RESOLUTION NO. 2017/20138-02

RESOLUTION OF CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY (THE “AUTHORITY") ADOPTING THE FINAL
AMENDED "ADJUSTED TO ACTUAL* BUDGET FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2016/2017; AUTHORIZING CONTRACTED
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF TO TAKE OTHER AND FURTHER
ACTIONS REASONABLY NECESSARY OR HELPFUL IN
FURTHERAMNCE OF THIS RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE FORMAL ACTION OF THE AUTHORITY, THAT THE FOLLOWING ACTION I5
HEREBY ADOPTED A5 THE LEGAL AND BINDING ACTION AND RESOLUTION OF THE AUTHORITY,
PERTAINING TO THE ABOVE SUBJECT MATTER SPECIFIED.

BACKGROUND RECITALS

WHEREAS, it Is nacessary and appropriate for the Authority to formally adopt and publish its final
amended budget for Fiscal Year 2016/2017, to correspond 1o actual revenues and expenditures for that

fiscal year;

WHEREAS, the contracted administrative staff, accountant, and Treasurer for the Authority have
prepared and provide such budget for formal adoption and approval; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to fully comply with the provisions of all applicable laws and
auditor recommendations to implement and observe best practices in the adoption and amendment of
its budgets.

FORMAL ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2017/2018-02

NOW, THEREFORE, THE FOLLOWING ACTION 15 HEREBY FORMALLY ADOPTED BY THIS RESOLUTION NO.
2017/2018-02, DATED EFFECTIVE THIS 18" DAY OF OCTOBER, 2017, AS FOLLOWS:

Sectlon 1, The Authority's official Budget for Fiscal Year 2016/2017, representing the final
amended budget for the immediate past fiscal year of the Authority with revenves and expenditures
adjusted to actual results for that reporting period, is hereby accepted, amended, approved and adopted
in the form attached hereto and herein incorporated by reference.

Section 2. The contracted administrative staff of the Authority shall take such other and further
actions as may be reasonably necessary or helpful to the formal action so authorized, approved, and
adopted by this Resolution Ne, 2017/2018-02, and as may include, for purposes of ilustration and not
limitation, (aj informing the auditor of the Authority of the approval of the amended final budget for Fiscal
Year 2016/2017, (b) publishing the final amended budget Tor Fiscal Year 2016/2017 on the Authority's
wehbsite, and (c] filing the same with the Clerk for the Board of County Commissioners for Clay County,
Florida,

e e e e
CCDA Resolution No. 2017 /2018-02 Page 1



Section 3. This Resolution 2017/2018-02 and the formal action set forth shall be effective
immediately upon adoption,

DULY ADOPTED THIS 18" DAY OF OCTOBER, 2017, BY THE CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY.

CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

BY:
MAME:
TITLE: RUSSELL BUCK, CHAIR

ATTEST:

SECRETARY
CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(SEAL)

I —
CCOA Resolution No. 2017 /2018-02 Page 2



LiEjakag

[T o Ee- (573 Lo G B 5T 44d FOE 30 JEE AR
—
= [F=T =L 1 REFTE N1 i -
PrT s T o o 6L o EA T T ETTET] :.-_umm
B L TRT AR TRE Sk D00 BEE 0 B T L N wariaanay LITH] - BLELEE AT
e R ———
) e T HOSTEH CONET R FT [T |8 Ly BRI WA L, 81, S M) e A eEy S5R0EE DH) - 60 BET e
P AR ST DOEISEcE- Sl MELTRLE 191 000 L 20 20K R 1 By ey ey g1, ), b s e ) L et SES05E S0 IR e
DeDLiE (Lo Tt H ik -] 3008 M ELE | sty wmy o g P MG (L oL, e ) LR S]] S ] 0 AR BT Frisiy i
[0 DD mn ] LI T B0 T 008 DEC L Bainodcf Puay migifud a4 . Sriaels sy Mgl P EMRE -8 L0 ¢ SR B Rkl
BN MR - QDIIEE
Wl LT Wi - 2 M AT BENEanEY BERGLEESDNN - (OOLAL MR L
] [~ s Tk N n T T B s
s TN DIrL L Sl 1] [0 SN N B TR Y GLDE P
| (R L i - G 500 1y ey DR b
e s) RO SR | FHE - ORIESE P
LIS i L] T RLY B TR BT T L T LT
m——mre— — —
[T [F T SOOI DG 551 DR E I g deey - dmgEr
Eas g WO [V 1] B DR LERL s )] RS pEEET DO
DOGIEE Wi LS [T Mool WEIET e b2y e ] eTeghy B - B jirmas
oy LEEg LI 6 R bt ] ErALTE R ] 8 g L L TR oy
DO miwTd [ R WA TR IR Dl o hapetista] T3], CODIEE
Safiday 3 seay - 00ITSE
[ Ti LT niGa ' B D0ETI 2501 SOAIIET JU LSRN - OBT1EC
Booup
e I e —_—
rakaig Sizmemranery isdpray sy psllmeq smpan e == di g -ql, B asuadygswoau) Leupig
ik § pripdaady EEpEEaE
WL

LLOT quisyded yinoag 95 e

fEnay s jeBpng sso Joid (Q30NINY)

Rujsoijig ibaiusaianad danas G

TR FROTY



E g g

1102 Seguuisgdig: unaag) §10E gm0
[EMy “sa eBpng 507 Wyoid (OIoNIwy)
Ailiopivy e uidopassg Qunas ey

R sy o] o] 1 ML e B ] g
LT G [Lif2o RETT I [ 5 B 5L e ) ] JIRTLE
Dol D e i OOHOTE M T B L sl v i BIATLY
[0 [Lif-r1] RICEE i1 5= 1 B2 AT Euvmaaarp v Bawasnsy - | M0EE
DORiE [T =it wEt g B i Sernphign]  lIRTLY
Bl Lol 00T O 34 Bew HE & Py - DORL LS
Hrexi o L] LS L] L MO Dhsj HERAUR]  DEFLE
(=T [T G - Cop VT L B el Fmgly - FogiLy pyan
il DO SO k] s t14 ) wwRsh SEE Y FISTLY
Easurd g Duped] pur aogs0 - JRGELD
(LT IR ST R e B H LT LT vy AdgaBuny ppyL - wesosdcg BuRpng - GEELS
DO i9EE L W ooEa TR 1Y il - Rl 1
ﬂ g WEEL [i)-H i) -—lH. dain | pomsall GTHLY
il m RidE Loy ] HTEs M E A YORD P LS
DEREEU] - SR
e ik 1] Sl L T B B s LT CTERE T
2] g ] i - T PR BT IENF LATIRRLLIT) S e SOETLE FEpaE
CEVCELE s L B W FESEE FROE e ey Bawresy  SLILE
Eige arEiL WIEG LR HIEFL MR LT F. 6 A
[Erpeeip b il Ll maE M N L e T T
DEVBELF [l Lo ol M TR- A ] HORMR . TEEL G
LI [T T wEar [ T HIET BE 2K aSEnys demiriy dinsalpy ML E
VRS Lk ALE IO ELL B B dasrRrg - OTLE
| [ B0 0D - SOTELE
Y R ETOET Wi~ | ikl Beron/ar TR ET B L R Tl T ]
DO o T LTI 0 e N T A TS e T I T pRzRE
L Lo LT ] Lo g BT B Sy o Bepwry Ty
DONET 4 Lo b ] e T [ | O o et OEFRNAS
FRYSITIE - DTS
sasusdry
= Ibprn] nan inlrry mpan Liesg) L=Epng ._.__n.-h..u_-:.n_lu u__n.._.n.n_u_m__.ﬂ._._.n_u___.: h._ﬂ_._mu.._._ﬂ
PO REEES i 3
P—_—
Tlng

ey Eruy

Wb FH



Lo Loy

[CT] [T} S0 | [FT] D BT I F

L s s IFEITRE ETrT (ST A THE B0 LEE LB L] _.HE._

[l DOEIEaEE ] DOEIFSLE LT ] 3T LR SRandely - DR R
————————— ————

(e [ ] DT b T ) DEE S ST 3 . B vl WAl 5 T A BB e AR E RS Tan - BnaEY

b D iy SLE0 il 080 TR 81 DR TEL LR e L o R R e R IR " 11]

FRundig i - (h0EE

ke PR Wl Tir (s FICELIL Ly 1 Swmimadny Paspessrly pow 8390450 GASCEE PO

M= L ] Wbai- 1N (TS [T vl e wE g TS LS oy
o BT Do Tldi ipm )] Lk TH EE T T papp
52T D T T I TH e ) fep -2 LLiE 1 0 ey BE RIS
20 ird Ll Sl L ([T H: Bq) N L] 1 A ELECLE
I ee— B e e
e T— b A sy gy g 1By HAELT] 15400 willu iy L T EHEEE:—FEEE
iy thr ey,
—
™idd
10T Jegrandeg yloeouy) giog sgqoisn
(engay “sa yalipng ss07 Joud (03anNIwY) e

A2

Apomny uawdogassg Lunoes ey W Tl



ODctober 6, 2017

Clay County Development Authority
1734 Kingsley Ave,
Crange Park, FL 32073

RE:  Project Eligibility Application

Dear CCDA,

Enclosed please find Penney Retirement Community's Project Eligibility
Application and supporting documnents. Please be advised of the following:

= The Town of Penney Farms was notified of our project in 2015, prior to the
Certificate of Need approval, and they are provided with project updates on a

regular basis.
* The new facility will connect to the Town of Penney Farm’s water and sewage

system.
® A project update will be given to the Town's Planning and Zoning Committee on
Tuesday, October 10, 2017,

Please let me know if additional items are needed to process the application.
Thank you for your consideration,

Simcerely,

Teresa Scott
President/CED

Enclosures

FEMNEY RETIREMENT COMMUNITY, INC
PO Box 555 | 3495 Hoffman 5t | Permey Farms, FL 32079 | 9042848200 | VisitPRC.org



Project Eligibility Application

Applicant
Aamg  Pensey Retiremes) Comminity, o<,

ETM 3o 2ddnl

Entily.  Comperalion A Limitad parnershi Genatal padnemship

Criher {describe) Siwa-stosgh, non-peodil 5503

Bils Flenida

Address: 3995 Holfmian -El.nﬂ,l‘-m.nq' Farnas, FL 32079

Telphons,  VIA-184-5004

Gig-184-5500

Fax:

PH'EH.I':W Penney Rtﬂmmtﬂnammnﬂp]nr_

D! Teress Scot - PresidentiCED, Dale Fich - CF, Rees DiPatri - Secrelary

Company
Coungal  Shdsey 5 Slmimans, 1L 1059 Riverside Avenuse, lachsanville, FL, 32204, Sidney Stmmors: ssiwimmmonsbaw com {$04) 9454521

A

Hond Cavnge) Wabsors, Giblm & Mickersom, LA 2503 N .IH.-"' Pasksl D S1e 1080 Jihin Slokes: istnkes@ngn-dampacom (R13) 281-2223
Liridarwiier mw Liegler, 42801 Cog Boad, Suite 102, Glen Allen, Wirgings 32060, Brendon Pawell; bpoanelliingeroom (834

Amawnt of

Bonds  _na s evered £15 000000
Profest Dascopiion
(il pelwml the exavimyg Series 15964 and Sanes 1996H Rends i) inance the replacement of an exisiing skifled mirsing Facality; (iii] hund

inderes fur |2 moaths loe the shalled narsiog progec s (iv) pay cosis of issunnce

L LT H
LLTET T

Cipsd {Rutirnatos) Land L Banidings

Equipnerit 1L 0n legugnce costs

creatinn of wht. apdatsd healtheare facilay, consdidmzan af debn

Effgcis




Fubiic
Sefviges. nol it profit hausiig fer senson, offering ll levels of care Gndigundent, assisted [nng, memiy cere and skilled nurdng)

Public hearing & approval by eleciad afficals required? ves © Mo O
Private activily band limiation applies? yes O No ©
History of Company
Located om a 00 ecre campas in the tows of Penpey Furns, Florida Qapproximatedy 40 miles suuth of lacksonsillel, PRC & 3 Eisiils i - fer- e
seipoeateon thin wes extablishied and ppened b bustnaman LC Pens sl ks nd YMOA workers who had
¥ PCCRCT) PRC's stated mission b in fester an inclusive Chptetisn Cottmamity

bmoted resnuirera Ii i 3 contineing care Tesrement cansmbmd
secihiyg the abuandant life through socal interacteon snd service in eetirement. With close 1o 500 esidents representing newily 36 Bifferent
denartnalsons, PR provide: & casing enviranmen| and small (rwn simnsphers. esbdrnis ae cinearaged (0 siay aciive gnd ivalved in the

coaumi ity through vobanteering opponuedies i PRC, the wwn of Penney Farme and in (ke surreanding coantics
Enclosures = -

Ledter of Bond Counseal

Application fee ($1,000.00
ICRE Bond issuance fee %4 of 1% of Band amound

Financial stalements (stale years)  FY a32004, FY 83000015, FY &/3002006

Foen 10-K Reports Enclesed O Mot epplicable &
Zaning and wiility letters
[Hier (lst) =

Appiicant cartifies that it 13 financially responsible and fully capable and willing to fulfil #'s cbligations under the
linancing agreement, including the obligalicn to make payments in the amounts and al the tmes requirsd: 1o

cperate, maintain and repair at its own expense the Project; and 1o serve the purposes of the Florida Industria!
Development Financing Act and such ofher responsibiliies as may be imposed under the fmancing agreemant.

Date of Agplication: __ O coloer S 20171

(MAME OF APELICANT) F?E ANEW QE’H FemMe ﬂ+ C-L!Mr"ﬂm:_‘q_, Inc

o
o T ilg




Application Mo
Lhale received;

. Perind epds:

CLAY COUNTY Dae diselosed:
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Application for Declaration of Official Intent

Applican reguests thal the Authorily declare g8 official intent to reimburse Original Expendifures for the Project
described herein with proceeds of an issuwe of the Aulhority’s indusirial developgmenl revenue bonds, pursuani o
the Traasury Departmant Regulations § 1 150-2 ("Eeimbursemen Regulalions”] wnder the Internal Revenue
Code of 1966, 35 amended (Code”). "Orginal Expendilure” meens an expendilure for a governmendal purnpose
that is originally paid from a source other than a reimbursemenl bond. as defined in paragraph (c) of the
Raeimbursemend Raguations, which & pad by o on behal of ihe Applicant

Apolicanl has consuited Bond Counsel and believes thal it is capable of salisfying and 8 is willing to satishy,
applicable requirements of law, including federad income fax aws I the Authorily makes the dectaration of
official mtent, Applicand intends to proceed with the Project and with fhe Bond financing, Howewver, # is
undersiood that Applicend may not proceed or continue if the Bonds are not wseed and the proceeds made
available to finance the Project, I the declaration of Official infent i made, ihe Auhordy's inlenticns will be
suliect to satisfacton of &0 applicable criteria and requirements of law, including federal income tax laws, and
ihe Authorily's guidelines, procedures and policies.  Medher Applicant nor the Aulhordy shall barve any lepal
obligation by reason of ths Application or the declaration of official inteni, except the Applizant's cbligations for

ncemnlification set forth below

The Authorly shall have no chlgadion to advance cosls or expenses in conneclion with the Project or any
proceedings for the authorization end issuance of the Bonds. Applicant shall be responsible for payment of 24
fequired governmenial fees; chligafions to confractars, subcontrastors, malenalmen and suppliers; reazonable
fess, expanses and dishursements of the Authorily’s legal counsel; and all fees, expenses and digbursernents
due or becoming due to other professional consultants and advisers, ncluding. wilhowt Emilation, company
counsal, bond counesl, accouniants, architecte, enginaers, financial consulants and mvesiment bankers, and
commissiong, fees ang ot compensation (including reimbursement of expenses) to underariiers, placement
agenie, trusiess, broxers and other paries sngeged by or on bahall of applicart of wilth % consenl

Medher this application nor any declaration of official Intent shell preclude Applicant from reguesiing other
incentives to economic development or banafits, nor shall thes application or any declaration of officia! inten
preclude any governmental unit of agency from making any such olher incentives o Benefils available 1o

Applicant

Apphcand hereby indemnifies and holds the Aulhorily and ids members, ollicers and agenis harmiess from and
against any snd all kebidies, obligations, ossee, cosls and expensas, moluding claime and amoents pesd in
setilernent of therect, and inchuding attcenoys fees and cosls incurned in connechan with eaal procesdings and
gettiements (whathes or nol any a&ction, sull or clher proceeding i5 filed), srisimg oul of or predicated upon this
application, and ¥ the declasation of offica! intent & made, the declarabion of cficial irfend, the Projed] or the
Bonds. This paragraph shall survive the execolion and any expralion o terminalion of the declaration of cffcial

irent

Pursuani 1o Section 283 075, Flosids Statuies, Applicant hereby requests thal this application. 1he declanation of
intent, end- &l information, reconds, date, and documents of the Aulhonty which contan of would provide
irfarmation concerming plans, intertions, o Interests of Applicant or any related person to locate, relocatle, of
expand any of its manufsctunng o other business sctivities in the State of Flonds shall be confidental and
exempd from the provisions of Section 118.07(1), Florda Slatutes, for 24 manths from ihe dafe of fling of ihis
application or unll disclosed by Applicant or the Authonty. The Authordy will use ressonable effors 1o
coopersie and coordinate with Applicard wih respect 1o any discloswne, whather voluntasy or reguired, subject bo
applicable requiremants of bw. Mol withslanding thie foregeing, neilher e Authorly nor any of s members,
cHicers, employees or agents shall have sny kebility 10 Applicen or any other parson for any such disclosure,
whether or not resulting from any negligent or intertional act or cmission of the Authorily, and Applicant bereby
walvas any claims against the Authorily, e members, officers, employess and agents, wilh respect fo such

dizclosure.



CLAY COUNTY Application Mo e ——
Peite recesived:

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ————

Declaration of Official Intent

Purguant to Regulaton § 1.150-2 of the Treasury Department Reguialions under the Intemal Ravenue Code ol
1888 &= emended (he "Code”), and a Resoluton of the Clay County Development Authoriy (The “Authosity™),
the undersigned suthorzed reprasentalives of the Authorlty hereby declane official intent on behalf of the
Authorlly ta reimburse expenditures made by or on behalf of the Applicant with respect 1o the Project, and any
reasonable deviations theren ("Original Expenditures”). with proceeds of the Authorily's industrial development
revenue bonds, s follows:

Appficant Tenmey Retmremest Conmanioy, s

Project
(1} refund the existing Series 15904 anad Sevies 1996H Heds il fnence Lhe replacament 6f an easing skilled marsimg Skt

{iti} fond intezest fine 12 nsnths for the skilled nasing projret and div) pay costs of ssgance

Aot of
Bands. nod 1o excesd $15.000,HH)

This Declaralion of Official fnfent = besed upon the Applicant's stalements hal i intands io proceed with the
Froject and fenancing cosls of the Project with the proceeds of the Authonly's indugliial develbament revenie
bonds, and i made wilh the Aulhorily's reasonable expeciation that the bonds will be issued and 8 porfion of
the proceeds used to reimburse and Original Expenditures. The Applicant shall notity the Authority promptly if it
determines not to proceed with {he Project of the Bonds. This Declaration does not constitule &n approval of
the Progpect or approval or authorization of the Bonds, or @ commimen! of an allocalion of the sigte volume
lim#fation for the Bonds, and & subject to satisfacton of and compliance with ai applicable reguiremenis of the
Florida Industrisl Development Financing Act and offer provisions of law, applicable regurements of the Code
and e Regulations thersundes and the Authority's gusdelines, procedures and polices

Dated this day of 01

CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

By:
Mamo:
Title:
By
MName:

Title:




Division Serial Mo.
Prior Division Serial Mo,

STATE OF FLORIDA DIVISION OF BOND FINANCE
NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE BONDS AND REQUEST FOR WRITTEN CONFIRMATION

Mk
PART . {fobecompleted by apphicant) Diate

Hame, addrees and phone number of persan who prepared this Notice (confirmalion or rejection
walll e send f0 this person unless ctherwise direcied)

Phone: {4

Address

Iz5uing Agency:
Company (if applicabla);
Amount ==
& this a Supplementary Motice? Yes __ No

Chack one of the follenwing,

MbusllZamily Single Family Oither

(if other, specify)
Is: this & Priority Project under State law? Yes__ No_
Purpose:

5 147 (f} or similar IRC Approval Date
Contemplated Date () of Issue:
Approving Autharity (Unit of Govemment)
Agency Official and Tille

I hereby certily that the elected official or voter approval requited pursuand 1o 147 () of the
Infernal Revenue Code has been obtained on the date indicated above, and that the amowd
reasonably expecled to ba required for ihe financing equale =1 least 905 of the amount requasies

abowe
Signature of Agency OMilal

PART ll. {iobe compleded by Division of Bond Finance)

Date and Time Received Recewved by
Stalus.  (confitmed or rejected)

Commenls:;
Amoun Confirmed Confirmation VYakd Through:

Category of Confirmatian

Title: Cerector, Div. Of Bond Finapge

ISSUER 5 HEREBY ADWISED THAT THIE CONEIRMATION IS CONDITIOMAL AND SHALL
NOT BE CONSIDERED FINAL UNTIL AND UNLESS {1} THE DIVISION RECEIVED TIMELY
MOTIFICATION OF ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS PURSUANT TO 150.805 (5) (a) FLORIDA




STATUTES AND (2) THE DIVISION HAS ISSUED ITS FINAL CONFIRMATION OF
ALLOCATION (FORM BF 2007-b) WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS

{Form BF 2006-005-1-68)
STATE OF FLORIDA DIVISION OF BOND FINANCE

ISSUANCE REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 159.805(5) (a), FLORIDA STATUTES

NiA

Division Sarial & {1 any}
Mams of [esuar
Wame of Bonds:

Amount of Bonds: Date of lssuanee
{Celivery Date)

Excess Amount (if any):
Ty af Sale. Publc Offenng Frivate Placemen

Check one of the followmng
Mutidamily _ Single Family Emall lssus IDE

Other [if other Spexify)
Puipase.

Al If manufaciunng DB, prodect manufaciured.

B) Il Mulifamiy Housing Bonds, number of unils:

C It Single Family Bonds, amount for onginateen of ioans: S
amount immediately available: ¥

List Rafings {f any} Recewed

Mocdy's Standard & Poor's Py

Credd Enhangemeand [f any};
LTI |
(nature)

Project Sponsar or Privale Bodrewer (if applicable),
Marme
Address
Phone Number Contact Person
Address of Project

Marme & Address of Send Coungsl,

Wame & Address of Underwriter

Mame & Address of Private Placemen! Agency:

Amound of Bond Proceeds Disbursed af Closing: §




TLANASSLE
150 fahan Deds

surle 200
Ll Nﬁb Grs Telinhasaes, Fivcs 32304
2802 Reaky Peint Drivo (B 2244070 Tol
Scite 1040 (850 2324073 Fox
tampa, Fiodda 33607 Glbll I I
FOAT LAERDALD

|B13) 28E-2303 Tel

1813 RELL13Y Faa NI Cke rS 01—1 PA 114 msu&uﬁrhw

Foit Laudedala, Flenda 23530
{052 388 3803 TRl

Oetober 3, 20017

VIiA EMAIL

Tosh Cockrell, Executive Director
Clay County Development Authority
JoshCockrell(@claydevelopmentauthority .com

Re:  Approximately $14300,000 Clay County Development Authority
Healthcare Facilities Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds (Penney
Retirement Community, Tnc. Project), in one or more series, either taxable
or tax-exempl or both (collectively, the "Bonds")

Dear Mr. Cockerell:

We have been engaged as bond counsel to Penney Retirement Community, Inc.
{the "Company"), a Florida not for profit corporation and a 501{c)X3) entity for purposes
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, ps amended (the "Code"), in eonnection with the
authorization, issuance, sale and delivery of the above-referenced Bonds. We understand
that the Company intends to request that the Clay County Development Authority (the
“Autherity") give ils preliminary approval to issue the Bonds, privalely place the Bonds
with Branch Banking & Trust Company, and loan the proceeds from the sale of the
Bonds o the Company, We [urther undérstand (hat the Bonds and the loan evidenced
thereby will be payable solely from the security and collateral provided by the Company.

The Bonds will be issued for the prncipal purposes of (i) financing and
reimbursing the Company for the cost of acquiring, constructing and equipping certain
healthcare facilities in Ciay County, Flonida, including & replacement skilled nursing
facility, to be owned and operated by the Company, (ii} refunding all of the Autheritny's
outstanding Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds (Penney Retirement Community
Project) Series 1996A and Series 19961, (1) capitalizing interest on a portion of the
Bonds during the construction period and (1v) funding any necessary reserves and paying
costs and expenses associated with the issuance of the Bonds {collectively, the "Project™).



Josh Cockrell, Executive Director October 3; 2017
Clay County Development Autharity
Page 2

The Bonds are a type that are commonly referred 10 by bond lawyers and other
market participants as 301(¢c)3) bonds. Based upon our current understanding of the
transaction, the Bonds can satisfy the legal requirements o be issued by the Authority
and loaned 1o the Company to finance and refinance the Project

If you have any guestions, comments or concerns regarding the foregoing, please
fee] free 1o contact me af the telephone number above or email me a
jstokes@ngn-tampa.com. | leok forward to workimg with you on this transaction,

Siqce:re Iy,
John R, Stokes, Exg.

JRS/mmg



Branch Banking and Trust Company

Cretober 2, 2007

Feyan & Tincaberg

Sanlor Vs President

2010 ‘West Forsyih Streal, Suits 200
Jdagisanyife, FL 32202

[B34] 3515764

ichide (S} 220- 2548

Penney Retirement Community, Inc.

3495 Holfman Street

Penney Farms, FL 32079
Attention: Dale Fish, Choef’ Financial Officer

Dear Mr. Fish:

Om behalf of Branch Banking and Trost Company (the “Bank"”), we are very pleazed to offer Penney
Retirement Community, Ino. (the “Bomower™) a tax-exempt loan in the amount of up to 514,500,000 (the
“Credit Facility™). which is subject, but not limited 1o, the general terms and conditions outlined helow

A, CHREMT FACILITY

Bomrower.

Eender

EHARIVIRI 3 Ml

Penney Relirement Community, Inc,
The Bank or an affiliate designated by the Bank.
Lip to $ 1 4,500,000

A tex-exempt bond issued through a gualitied conduit lssuer and purchased by
the Lender

To o) redeom the Borrower™s outstanding principal amount of the Series 19964
and [9UEE Bonds, {ii) finance the construction of a new skilled nursing facility,
{iii) fund a 12 month interest reserve and (iv) finance the cost of issuing the
Credit Facility

The Borrower shall pay to the Lender an the closing date & non-refundable
commitment fee egual 1o 0.10% of the Credit Facility,

Prior to chosimg, the Borrower shall elect whether the Credit Facility will be Fully
Funded or Draw Down, as more specifically described below. [f the Draw Down
15 elected only the variable interest rate option may be selected.

Fully Fupded: If the Credt Facibity s fully funded a1t closing (which 12 8
requirement of the fixed rate option], the Credit Facility will be fully-funded on
the closing date imo g project fund (the “Project Fund™) keld with the Bank. The
Bank is wialling to offer the Propect Fund as an mierest besring eccount. Based on
e limited informetion received o date regarding the 12 month construction
prenod, we have provided a deposit rate mdication of 1,15%,

Draw Down: If the *Draw Down™ option is sclected, post-closing draws will be
limited to every other month for the 12 month construction pencd. Al principal



Penney Retirement Community, Inc,

Oxctober 2, 2007
Page 2

Mandatory 1endsr
Date:

CHARDYSIIT v |

undrawn at the end of the 12 maonth construction period will be deposited into &
non-interest bearing aceount held a1 the Bank.

The Credit Facility will be subject to mandatory tender for purchase by the
Bomower on the date twelve (12) years from the closing date (the “Mandatory
lender Brate’™), and all principal and sccrued interest will be due rothe Lender on
the Mandatory Tender Date,

Prios to elosing the Bommower may select between the following two oplions:

Opthan 1. The Barrower shall establish and madntain all of its banking
relationship with the Bank, including its treasury services relationship.

Option 2: The Borrower retains its treasury service rélationship with Ameris
Bank.

For each Option, the Borrower may select, prior to closing, either a variable or a
fixed interest pate for the Credit Facility, as sel forth helow:

Marishle Rate
Urption | (8% of One-Month LIBOR) + 0, 75%
Owption 2 (68% of Une-Month LIBOR) + 0.83%

All mterest will be computed and charged for the aciual number of days elapsed
on the hasis of 8 year consisting of three hundred sisty (360) days. The intercst
rate will adjust monthly with changes in Cne-Month LIBOR and will be subject
to increase in the evenl of a Determination of Toxability or decreases in the
maximum statutory corporate marginal =y rete.  In no evend will One-Month
LIBOR ever be less than sero percent.

Fixned Rate

The fixed interest rate of each Tranche will be established based on the BB&T
Cost of Funds plus & credit spread. The fixed imerest rate will be compuied and
charped for the actual number of days elapsed on the hasis of 4 year consisting of
three hundred sixty (360) davs and will be subject 10 increase in the event of a
Determination of Taxshility or decreases in the maximum stalulory Corporate
marginal tax rate. For illustration purposes, the indicative fixed interest rates for
the various terms are sat forth below

Interest Rate
Cigstiom | 2.76%
Option 2 I.86%

These rates are indicative of current market conditions us of October 2, 2017 and
are subject to change wl gny Time,



Penney Retirernent Community. [ne.

October 2, 2017
Papge 3

bwap Agresment:

LCHAHRZIOERT Tilw ]

If e fixed interest rate option is selected by the Borrower. the tollowing additional
conditions spply:

L, The fixed rate can be locked up to 2 days prior to the clesing and funding
of the Credit Facility,

Z The Credit Facility must be Tully advanced at closing,

3 The Credit Facility may he prepaid upon no less than seven days® notice
to the Lender,

4. Any prepayment of the Credit Facility must be in a minimum amount of

the greater of (i) [0% of the balance of the Credit Facility or (i) $250, 000,

- The Bomrower will pay 1o the Lender s prepayment fes in connection
wiith any prepayment of the Credit Facility based on the Lender's standard break-
funding terms for prepayments of fixed rate loans.

If the Borrower selects the variable interest rate option and gualifies as an
“Eligible Contract Participant™ and is not 2 “Speciel Entity™ {each as defined in
the Commodity Exchange Act, as smended). the Bank will make available to the
Horrewer at its request an interest rate swap (the “Swap”) for the purpose of
hedeing the variable interest rate risk on the Credit Facility for a term not 1o
exceed the Mandatory Tender Date.  The notional amount of the Swap will not
exceed the principal amount of the Credit Facility. Trade execution of the Swap
will be subject 1o exevution of 1SDA (Intermationsl Swap and Derivatives
Aszsociabion, nc.) standard documentation acceptable o the Bank {the “Swap
Agreement™). Obligations arising under the Swap Agreement will be secured by
the same collaternl securing the Credit Facility, and the covenants, terms and
provisions of the comtinuing covenants agreement will be ncorporated into the
Swap Agreement. The Borrower will be subject o the muke-whele provisions.
ay described in the Swap Agreement, arising from any early termination of the
Swap, which could resolt i a substantial additional puyment from the Borrawaer.
Prior o the Bank discussing of execuling an inlerest rate swap. the Borrower
mu=l engaze an IRMA.

The Borrower may select between a Swap staring &t closing or a forward starting
mterest rade swap beginning 12 months from closing,

Fer illustration purposes, indicative swap rates for the Credit Facility are set forth
below:

Switp Raiss
Start ot Closing Forward Stan
CHption | 2.46% 2.54%
Option 2 2.56% 2.64%

The rates wbove wre indicative of current market conditions as of Ociober 2,
2017, All rates are subjoct to change at any lime.



Penney Retirement Community, Ine,

Cetober 2, 2017
Pape 4

Repevment:

Collateral

Defaull Kate:

Accrued inferest will be payable monthly. Principal will be payable monthly
bused on a 25 year amartization schedule, subject to adjustments mutually agreed
upon by the Berrower and the Lender.  All principal and accrued but unpaid
interest shall be duc on the Mandatory Tender Date

The obligations of the Borrower o the Lender relating to the Credit Facility will
be secered by a Mirst lien mongage on the Borrower's real propeny and
improvements of the Borrower, equipment and ‘gross revenues’,

The Bank's Prime Rate plus 2 00% per annum. with an interest rate floor of
600F.

B. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE CREDIT FACILITY

The obligation of the Lender to close the Credit Facility shall be subject to fulfillmem of the
following additional conditions precedent:

CHAR D B33Py |

(al

(b}

o)

i}

)

if)

)

ih}

Bond Counsel Opinion: The Lender shall have received an approving opinion of
bond counsel saisfactory 1o the Lender and customary for similar transactions,
incleding an opinion that interest on the Credit Facility is exempt from federal
income tax and the interest thereon will not be o specific preference item Tor
purposes of the altermetive minimum tax

Botrower's Coyngsl Opinion:  The Lender shall receive legal opinions from an
attorney of the Borrower accepiable to the Lender and its counsel, covering
malters. customary to the trangactions described herein and in all respects
peceptoble to the Lender.

Corporate Authorimtion: The Borrower musst furnish the Lender with properly
exccuted resolutions authorizing the borrowing under the Credit Facility and all
other dealings with the Lender, together with cenified copies of the Bomower's
organizations | documents

Covemmenial Approvals.  Approval by all spplicable local, state and federal

authorities and cur review and approval of the erms and conditions of the
amendments to the tax-esempt bond dosuments,

LICC Search: The Lender shall have received o UCC search only showing liens
om the personal property of the Borrower acceptable to the Lender.

Inguranee: The Borrower shall deliver evidence of harard and liability insurance
evidéncing coverage agceptable to the Lender. The Lender shall be naomed a5 o
morgagee and lender boss payee on such policies.

Eropect Information:  Receipt and sansfactory review by the Lender of the
construction budpet, construction ¢onimcts, construction timeline and such other
infirmation related to the Project as the Lender may reasenably request.

Floed Cenilication: The Lender will obtain from a vendor sebected by the Lender
e determination of whether the real property collateral is located m a “special



Penney Retirement Cammunity, Ingc,

October 2, 2007
Page 5

1]

()

ik)

Hood, mud stide, or erosion hazerd area™. If any of the real property collstersl fs
located within such an ares, this commitment shall be urenforceable as to Lendar
unless Borrower provides Lender, prior o closing, with Mood insurance
acceptable w Lender in its sole discretion, naming the Lender as mortgages or
loss pavee,

litle Insupance: A lender's title insurance policy ncceptable 1o the Lender.
showmg no liens ur encumbrances other than permitied encumbrances

Real Estate Due Diligence: None required {no appraisal or environmental repeart

required),

Other ltems: The Lender shall have received such other documents, instruments,
#pprovals or opinicons as the Lender may reasonably request

C. OTHER TERMS

CHARZISIAE 4w ]

()

h}

{d)

This Commitment is subject fo the review and approval by the Lender and fs
counsel of the terms and conditions of all bond docaments.

The Borrower will pay all costs of the Lender associated with this transaction,
including the Lender's kegal costs. whether or not the Credit Facility is made.
The Lender will be represented by Mowre & Van Allen. PLLC and the estimate
ol legal costs, based upon the current proposed structure, is 535,000

The documentétion related 1o the Credit Facility shall be in form and substance
satisfactory 10 the Lender and will contain terms, conditions and affirmative and
negative covenants consistent with financings of this rype, fneleding, but not
lirmited to, the following reporting requirements and covenants:

(1 Minimumn Debl Service Coverage Ratio of 1.20 to 1:00, messured
annually.

(23 Minimum Days Cash on Hand of 150 days, measured semi-annually

{3} Additional Debt requires pro-forma evidence of & minimum Debt Service
Covernge Ratio of 135 to 1.00 afier incurrence of the proposed debi,

() Annual aedited financial statements within |20 days of each fiscal year
end; quarterly management prepared financial statements within 43 diys of the
end of each fiscal quarter: covenant compliance certificates due simultaneous]y
with delivery of financial statemenis.

(3} If Option I is selected, the Borrower shall transition its treasury services
relationship to the Bank if Ameris Bank no lonper maintaint & branch on the
Barrower’s campus.

This Commitment must be accepted by the Borrower on or before Ocrober 16,
2017 or it will terminate  If accepted, the Commitment will expire December 31,
2017 il the Credit Facility is not closed by then,



Penney Retirement Commumnity, Inc.
Detober 2, 2017

Page &

ie) The Borrower will be required to indemnify the Lender for any increased costs
for 1ssumg, maintaining and participating in the Credit Facility which result feom
chumges in any law, rile or regulation, state or federal, appiicable 1 the Lender,
including capital reserve requirements or changes in tax law,

. MISCELLANEOUS

Ix

CHARIUHESRT M |

Commitment Modifications:  This Commitment may not be medified excepl by wriiten

agreement signed By the Borrower and Lender,

Assigi », tment:  This Commitment may not be assigned withowt the prior
written consenl of Lender

Third P i ights: Mo persan who 15 not a party o this Commitment shall

have or enjoy any rights hereunder and all third panty beneficiary rights are expressly
negaled, Without limeting the generality of the foregoing, no one other than the Borrawer
shall have any rights Lo obtain or compel the closing of the Credit Facility.

Representation of Facts: This Commitment is issued in reliance upon the accuracy and
completeness of all information furnished by or for the Barmower and is subject to the
comtinued accuracy end completeness of all such information, The Lender shall have the
uption 1o terminate thiz Commitment upon written notice (o the Bomower if there shall
hive been any material misrepresentation or misstatement or any muterial ermor of fact
contained in any of the above or if 8t any 1ime there shall have been a material adverse
change in the state of facts indicated therein or in the fnancinl condition of the Rorrower

Indemaification by Bormrower. The Bomower agrees to indemnify @nd hold harmiess the
Lender from and against any and all cloims. damages. Labilities and expenses which may
be incurred by or asserted against the Lender in connection with any proceeding urising
ot of this commitment or Borrower's use of the proceeds of the Credit Facility.

Confidentiality:  This Ucmmitment s confidential and, except for disclosure on &
confidential basis 1o the Borrower's board members, financial advisars, accountants,
attomeys and other professionnl advisors retained by the Borrower for use in connection
with the proposed financing or as may be required by law, or any other povernmental
authority that regulstes or audits the Borrower, may nof be disclosed in whole or in pan
by the Borrower er any such financial sdvisors, accounlants, attorneys or other
professional advisor to sny other person or entity without the Lender's prier written
consgnt, I this Commitment is delivered 1o & financial advisor or person other than the
Borrower, by receipt and use by such mdvisor or other person in connection with the
proposed transaction, swch advisor or other person agrees o be bound by the
confidentialicy torms ser fonh above,

Municipal Advisor Disclosyre, The interest rate swap quates contained herein have been
prepared by the Hank solely for information purposes. The Bank {8 not recommending an
action or proveding any advice o the Borrower and is not acting as @ municips] advisor or
linuncial advisor. The Bank s not serving m g fiduciary capacity pursuant o Section 158
of the Seccurities Exchange Act of 1934 with respect o the information and materisl
contained i this communication. The Bank is acting in its own interest. Borrower must
engage &n IRMA and discuss any information and material contained in  this



Fenney Retirernent Community, ne.
Cletober 2, 2017

Pape 7

CHARI I SEE5 M

communicalion related to an inerest rate swap.  Borrower is expected 1o seck the advice
of the IRMA and any other professional advisors which they deem appropriate, especially
with respect to any legal, regulatory. tax or accounting treatment. Execution of any
Interest Rate derivative is subject to certification by Counterparty that they do not gualify
as i Special Entity under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection
Act,

[Signature Page Follows)



Penney Retirement Community, Inc.
October 2, 2017
Page £

We at BRB&T sincerely appreciate this opportunity o help meet your financial requirements,
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any guestions regarding this commitment. [T vou agres
with the terms and conditions gencrally outlined in this letter, please sign the aceeplance line below and
return this letter 1o my sttention. As stated above. this commitment must be accepled by the Borrower on

or before October 16, 2017, A copy is enclosed for your file,

Very truly vours,

HREANCH BANKING AND TRUST COMPANY

We accept the terms and conditions of the commitment eutlined in this lerter

PENNEY RETIREMENT COMMUNITY, INC,

By: Date: Cetober | 2017
MName:
Tifle:_

CHARIUWEE Ty |



RESOLUTION 2017/2018-

A RESOLUTION PRELIMINARILY APPROVING THE
ISSUANCE OF A NOT TO EXCEED §14,500,000 CLAY
COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY HEALTHCARE
FACILITIES REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT
REVENUE BOND (PENNEY RETIREMENT
COMMUNITY, INC. PROJECT), SERIES 2017 TO (A)
REFUND (1) ON A CURRENT OR ADVANCE BASIS,
THE AUTHORITY'S OUTSTANDING HEALTH CARE
FACILITIES REVENLUE BONDS (PENNEY
RETIREMENT COMMUNITY PROIECT), SERIES 1996 A
AND (2) ON AN ADVANCE BASIS, THE AUTHORITY'S
OUTSTANDING HEALTH CARE FACILITIES REVENUE
BONDS (PENNEY  RETIREMENT COMMUNITY
PROJECT), SERIES [996B AND (B) FINANCE
(INCLUDING REIMBURSEMENT) THE COST OF
ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF
A REPLACEMENT 30 BED SKILLED NURSING
FACILITY TO BE OWNED AND OPERATED BY
PENNEY RETIREMENT COMMUNITY, INC., AND
MAKING DETERMINATIONS AS TO OTHER MATTERS
RELATED THERETO.

WHEREAS, the Clay County Development Authority {(the "Authority”) has been
requested by Penney Retirement Community, Inc, (the "Borrower™), a Florida notl-for-
profit corporation, to issue its Healthcare Facilities Refunding and Improvement Revenue
Bond (Penney Retirement Community, Inc, Project), Series 2017 (the "2017 Bond™) and
lend the proceeds thereot to the Borrower to (i) refund (A) on a current or advance basis,
the Authority's outstanding Health Care Facilines Revenue Bonds (Pennev Retirement
Community Project), Series 1996A and (B) on an advance basis, the Authority's
outstanding Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds (Penney Retirement Community
Project), Series 1996B (the Bonds referred to in clauses (A) and (B) are herein
collectively referred to as the "Prior Bonds™), (ii) finance (including reimbursement) the
cost of acquisition, construction and equipping of a replacement 50 bed skilled nursing
facility {the "Project”) to be owned and operated by Penney Retirement Community, Inc.,
(iii) capitalized interest on a portion of the 2017 Bond during the construction of the
Project and for a reasonable period after and (iv) pay costs associated with the issuance of
the 2017 Bond. and making determinations as to other matters related thereto; and

WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were previously issued by the Authority to finance
and refinance the cost of acquisition, construction, installation, renovation and equipping
of certain capital improvements to the Borrower's senior housing and healthcare facilities



located at the Borrower's campus within Clay County, Florida (the "County") and owned
and operated by the Borrower; and

WHEREAS, The Borrower has heretofore requested the Authority to conduct a
public hearing pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the "Code™), on the proposed issuance of the 2017 Bond and on the nature and
location of the facilities to be financed and refinanced with the 2017 Bond and to approve
the issuance of the 2017 Bond solely for purposes of Scction 147(f) of the Code. On the
date hereof the Authority held a public hearing in accordance with the provisions of
Section 147(f} of the Code, at which meeting members of the public were given the
opportunity to express their views on the issuance of the 2017 Bond (and the purposes for
which it is being issued) and the location and nature of the Project, such public hearing
taking place 14 days after notice of the hearing appeared in Clay Today. a legal notice
paper of general circulation in the County. An Affidavit of Publication of such notice is
attached hereto as Exhibit B: and

WHEREAS, after consideration of the issuance of the 2017 Bond, the refunding
of the Prior Bonds and the location and nature of the Project at a meeting open to the
public, held in accordance with all open meetings laws, and after the holding of the
public heaning referred to above, the Authority has determined that in assisting with the
refunding of the Prior Bonds and the financing (including reimbursement) of the costs of
the Project it will be acting in furtherance of the public purposes of the Authority: and

WHEREAS, the most feasible method of refunding the Prior Bonds and the
financing (including reimbursement) of the costs of the Project is for the Authority to
igsue the 2017 Bond for that purpose and for it to lend the proceeds from the sale of said
2017 Bond to the Borrower to enable the Borrower to pay the costs of the refunding and
financing, with loan repayments to be sufficient and timely to pay the principal of,
premium (if any) and interest on said 2017 Bond: and

WHEREAS, the Borrower has obtained a commitment from Branch Banking and
Trust Company (the "Bank™) for the Bank to make a loan evidenced by the 2017 Bond;
and

WHEREAS, the Bormower has requested that the Authority indicate its
willingness to issue its 2017 Bond for the principal purposes of refunding the Prior Bonds
and financing (including resmbursement) the costs of the Project so that the refunding and
financing may proceed; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that it is in the best interest of the
inhabitants of the Authority and of the County that the proposed refunding and financing
proceed without delay;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows:



L The Authority hereby finds that the refunding of the Prior Bonds and the
financing (including reimbursement) of the costs of Project will develop and promote the
public good and the general welfare of the Authority, the County and of the State of
Florida.

2. In order to indicate the Authority's willingness to issue its 2017 Bond in an
amount up to $14,500,000 to refund the Prior Bonds and finance (including
reimbursement) the costs of the Project (including capitalized interest), the execution and
delivery to the Borrower of an inducement agreement is hereby authorized, suid
inducement agreement to be in substantially the form attached hereto as Exlhubit A,
subject to such minor changes, insertions and omissions as may be approved by the
Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Authority, and the execution of said inducement
agreement by the Chairman or Vice Chairman and Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the
Authority, as hereby authorized, shall be conclusive evidence of such approval,

3. The Chairman or Vice Chairman and Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the
Authority are further hereby authorized to take any and all further action and execute and
deliver any and all other documents as may be necessary to issue and deliver the
2017 Bond and to effect the undertaking for which the 2017 Bond is proposed to be
issued; provided, however, the Authority shall adopt a Bond or Authorizing Resolution
approving all such documents prior to the issuance of the 2017 Bond,

4. The Authority hereby recommends the issuance of the 2017 Bond for the
purposes describe in this Resolution for approval by the Board of County Commissioners
of Clay County, Florida in accordance with the provisions of Sections 125.01(1}(Z) and
159287, Florida Statutes,

Adopted this 18th day of October, 2017.

CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORITY
[SEAL]
By:
Chairman
Attest;
secrelary



EXHIBIT A
INDUCEMENT AGREEMENT

October 18, 2017

Penney Retirement Community, Inc.
3495 Hoffman Street/P.O. Box 555

Penney Farms, FL 32079-0535
Re:  Proposed Revenue Bond Financing

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Clay County Development Authority (the "Authonty”) has been requested by
Penney Retirement Community, Inc. (the "Bormower™), to approve, for purposes set forth
herein, the issuance of a revenue bond in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed
£14,500,000 to be issued by the Authority and to be known as the Healthcare Facilimes
Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bond (Penmey Retirement Community, Inc.,
Project), Series 2017 (the "2017 Bond"), the proceeds of which will be lent to the
Borrower to (i) refund (A) on a current or advance basis, the Authonty's outstanding
Health Care Facilities Revenue Bonds (Permey Retirement Community Project), Series
1996A and (B) on an advance basis, the Authority's outstanding Health Care Facilities
Revenue Bonds (Pemney Retirement Community Project), Series 1996B (the Bonds
referred to in clauses (A) and (B) are herein collectively referred to as the "Prior Bonds"),
{1t} finance (including reimbursement) the cost of acquisition, construction and equipping
of a replacement 50 bed skilled nursing facility to be owned and operated by Penney
Retirement Community, Inc. (the "Project™), (if) capitalized interest on a portion of the
2017 Bond during the construction of the Project and for a reasonable period after and
(iv) pay costs associated with the issuance of the 2017 Bond, and making detenminations
as to other matters related thereto.

As a result of our discussions with vour officers and agents, we have determined
that the Authority's willingness to issue its revenue bonds or other appropriate obligations
(the "2017 Bond") to assist the Borrower m refunding the Prior Bonds and the financing
(including reimbursement) of the costs of the Project (including capitalized interest) will
develop and promote the public good and general welfare of the citizens and inhabitants
in the jurisdiction of the Authority, Clay County, Florida (the "County™) and the State of
Florida, and it is therefore the conclusion of the Authority that in assisting with the
refunding of the Prior Bonds and the financing of the costs of the Project the Authority
will be acting in furtherance of the public purposes of Chapter 139, Part II, Flonda

A-1



Statutes, as amended and Chapter and Chapter 2001-317, Laws of Florida, Special Acts
{2001) (the "Act").

In order to induce the Borrower to proceed with the refunding and refinancing and
in order to carry out the public purposes of the Act, we hereby make the following

proposals:

ik The Authority will issue its 2017 Bond in one or more series in a total
principal amount not to exceed $14,500,000 for the purposes of refunding the Prior
Bonds, financing (including reimbursement) the costs of the Project (including
capitalized interest) and paying costs of issuance of the 2017 Bond.

2, The terms of the 2017 Bond (maturity schedule, interest rates,
denominations, redemption provisions, security ete. ) must be satisfactory to the Borrower
and the Authority and will be as set forth in a financing agreement, a bond purchase
contract or similar agreement to be entered into between the Authority and lender
satisfactory to the Borrower.

3. {a)  Simultaneously with the delivery of the 2017 Bond, the Authority
will loan the proceeds from the sale of the 2017 Bond 1o the Borrower to refund the Prior
Bonds, finance (including reimbursement) the costs of the Project (including capitalized
interest) and pay the costs of issuing the 2017 Bond, and the terms and provisions of the
financing loan agreement to be entered by the Authority, the Borrower and the lender in
connection therewith (the "Financing Agreement”) shall be substantially in the form
generally uhilized in connection with such financial underiakings, as agreed upon by the
Authonty and the Borrower.

(b}  The amounts pavable under the Financing Agreement will be
assigned 1o the bank making the loan (the "Bank"), to be named by the Authority
subject to the approval of the Borrower, at such times and in such amounts as shall
be timely and sufficient to pay the principal of, redemption premium (if any) and
interest on the 2017 Bond as the same become due and payable. The duty of the
Borrower to make all payments required under the Financing Agreement shall be
absolute and unconditional afier the delivery of the 2017 Bond.

(¢}  The proceeds from the sale of the 2017 Bond to be applied to the
refunding the Prior Bonds, financing (including reimbursement) of costs of the
Project (including capitalized interest) and to payment of the costs of issuance of
the 2017 Bond.

(&) The Bormower will pay any taxes, assessments or utility charpes
which may be lawfully levied, assessed or charged upon the Bomower, the
Authority, the Project or the payments under the Financing Agreement if such

A-d



would result in a lien or charge upon the Project or the revenues of the Authority
therefrom,

(e}  The Financing Agreement shall provide that in the performance of
the covenants contained therein on the part of the Authority. any obligations it
may incur for the payment of money shall not be a general debt on its part or on
the part of the Authority, the State of Florida, the County or any other political
subdivision or municipality, but shall be payable solely from the specific payvments
recetved under such Financing Agreement or from 2007 Bond proceeds, insurance
proceeds and/or condemnation awards,

(f)  The Financing Agreement shall contain covenants providing for the
ndemnification of the Authority and the individual members and officers thereof
for all expenses incurred by them and for any loss suffered or damage to property
or any injury or death of any person occurring in connection with the refunding of
the Prior Bonds and the financing of the costs of the Projeci.

4, The Financing Agréeement will pledge all payments and amounts due
thereunder (other than fees and imdemnifications due to the Authority) for the benefit of

the Bank as holder of the 2017 Bond.

5 Upon delivery of the 2017 Bond, the provisions of this Agreement shall
have ne further effect and, in the event of any inconsistency between the terms of this
Agreement, the Financing Agreement, mortgage, promissory note or any other security
documents, such Financing Agreement, morigage, promissory nole or other security
documents shall control,

. If for any reason the 2017 Bond is not delivered within two years of the
date hereof, the provisions of this Agreement shall, at the option of the Authority, to be
evidenced in wnting, be canceled, and neither party shall have any rights against the
other, and no third parties shall have any rights against either party, except the Borrower
will pay the Authority for all reasonable expenses, including legal fees, which have been
mcurted by the Authority in connection with the proposed issuance of the 2017 Bond, the
refunding of the Prior Bonds and the financing of the costs of the Project.

T Whether or not the 2017 Bond is issued, the Borrower will pay any out-of-
pocket expenses of officers or employees of the Authority incurred in connection with
proposed issvance of the 2017 Bond, the refunding of the Prior Bonds and the financing
of the costs of the Project and will pay the legal fees and expenses of counsel for the
Authority and Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A., Bond Counsel, related to the proposed
issuance of the 2017 Bond, the refunding of the Prior Bonds and the financing of the
costs of the Project. If the 2017 Bond is issued, the Borrower will pay the customary
issuance fee of the Authority.



B. The Bomrower, in accepting this proposal, agrees (a) to indemnify, defend
and hold the Authority and its respective individual Authority members, officers, agents
and attorneys harmless against any loss or damage to property or any injury or death of
any person or persons occurring in connection with the refunding of the Prior Bonds and
the financing of the costs of the Project or the issuance of the 2017 Bond and (b) to
reimburse or otherwise pay, on behalf of the Authority, any and all reasonable and
necessary expenses not hercinbefore mentioned that are incurred by the Authority and
approved by the Borrower in connection with the refunding of the Prior Bonds, the
Project or the issuance of the 2017 Bond. This indemnity shall be superseded by a
similar indemnity in the Financing Agreement, and if the 2017 Bond are not issued and
delivered, this indemnity shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

9, This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the
Borrower and the Authority and their respective legal representatives, successors and
ASSIENS.

If the foregoing proposal is satisfactory to you, the Borrower may so indicate by
having the following acceptance executed by a duly authonzed officer of the Borrower
and returning a copy to the Authority, This proposal and acceptance will then constitute
an agreement with respect to the matters herein contained.

Yours very truly,
CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORITY
By: —
Chairman
[SEAL]
Attest:
Secretary

A4



ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

The terms and conditions contained in the within Inducement Agreement are
hereby accepted as of October 18, 2017,

PENNEY RETIREMENT COMMUNITY, INC.

By:

Title:



EXHIBIT B

Affidavit of Publication of Public Hearing Notice



PUBLISHER AFFIDAVIT
CLAY TODAY
Published Weekly

Qrange Fark, Flaridz

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF CLAY:

Before thie underslgrad authorty persoeal iy soined
Jom Camvirell, whe on oath seys thal he is the guiblister o the
“Llay Today” o newsnsoer published weekly o Orange Park in
Chiy County, Flerds thit the sitsched eopy of sdveriisemen

bering o
MEETING NOT|CE

i the matier of

MEEING DCT 18

LEGA] - -Iﬂ-l?; (FRDER: 178314

was published in asld nevwspeper in the e

100052017

Alfimew Poriker sme that said “Chay Today" ka newspaper poblled

at Oruege Pask, in said Clay County, Florids, and tat the seid eewipape:
bus: berens fors been eontinucisly published in said Clay Coenty, Flocida,
weeily, and fiss Bezn entard s Periodical maierial mater u the posi

affice in Crenge Fark, i seid Clay Coany, Flonds, for peviod of eme

beir nex) procooding the first pulsliceion of the wiinched copy of
adverimemen; and alfient further says thal b has nelker paid por promsised
ary person, firm ar corponalion any Scoum, rebile, commission o

refund for the purpose of securing this adserisement for publecation &

the Sed newspper

L f?'{?f*_'_-_#h =i

7
g

Ewom o me ad subseribed hefore me [Tk Bt i oy <TIE Lﬂ.l__."h.n’n.wE

CTRLE]

i ! = 'j ﬁm I'-.l‘_']‘ oy CHTMMRSION & uf'.m:
B §NEYy ooe ke

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF FLORI

IS LS HWY 1T Suse A, Floeing Isfand FL 13003
Pelephiate [204) 264-3300 « FAX (M4} 2649285
H-%ml: ChrisnsiGepena com

I of]

;ng: Pk by

l': !'

i
A

i
ﬁ%—
H
i

‘
i

iﬁ_l
i

R

H%iﬁ!
E..

%_

aERIlEg & ' _' L
SR

3 ilwi
s e e T
iind

i
:
4
i

abouroiam



